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B a lan ce Sh eet as at March  3 1 , 2 0 2 5

P a rti cu lars No tes
 As at 

Ma rch  3 1 , 2 0 2 5  
 As at 

March  3 1 , 2 0 2 4  

Assets
No n - cu rren t assets
Property, plant and equipment (including RoU Assets) 6 14,807                                         17,607                                
Capital work-in-progress 6 225                                                 242                                        
Intangible assets 7 19                                                     21                                           
Financial assets

Other non-current financial assets 8 194                                                 230                                        
Other non-current assets 9 234                                                 107                                        
To tal n o n - cu rren t assets ( A) 1 5 ,4 7 9                         1 8 ,2 0 7                   
Cu rren t assets
Financial assets

Trade receivables 10 130                                                 89                                           
Cash and cash equivalents 11 289                                                 310                                        
Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents 12 230                                                 238                                        
Other current financial assets 13 2                                                        3                                               

Current tax assets -                                                   102                                        
Other current assets 14 998                                                 952                                        
To tal cu rren t assets ( B ) 1 ,6 4 9                            1 ,6 9 4                     
To tal Assets ( A+ B ) 1 7 ,1 2 8                         1 9 ,9 0 1                   

Eq u i ty  an d Liabi li t ies
Eq u i ty
Equity share capital 15 7,500                                             7,500                                   
Other equity 16 (25,513)                                       (19,611)                              
To tal eq u i ty  ( C) ( 1 8 ,0 1 3 )                       ( 1 2 ,1 1 1 )                 
Lia bi li t ies
No n - cu rren t li abi li ti es
Financial liabilities

Lease liabilities 34 551                                                 403                                        
Other non-current financial liabilities 17 48                                                     37                                           

Other non-current liabilities 18 61                                                     112                                        
To tal n o n - cu rren t lia bi li t ies ( D ) 6 6 0                               5 5 2                         
Cu rren t liabi li ti es
Financial liabilities

Short term borrowings 19 9,850                                             8,820                                   
Lease liabilities 34 622                                                 1,255                                   
Trade payables 20

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 
enterprises 285                                                 186                                        
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 
enterprises and small enterprises 4,271                                             3,565                                   

Other current financial liabilities 21 2,871                                             3,101                                   
Other current liabilities 22 16,578                                         14,533                                
Short term provisions 23 4                                                        -                                         
To tal cu rren t lia bi li t ies ( E)  3 4 ,4 8 1                         3 1 ,4 6 0                   
To tal Eq u i ty  an d Li abili ti es ( C+ D + E) 1 7 ,1 2 8                         1 9 ,9 0 1                   

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements

As per our report of even date

F o r S.R. B atlibo i  & Asso cia tes LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No: 101049W/E300004

Amit P o dda r J agbi r  Sin gh Abh i j i t Ki sh o re
Partner Director Director
Membership No.: 509192 (DIN:03258009) (DIN: 09042186) 

Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai Place : Delhi
Date : May 26, 2025 Date : May 26, 2025 Date : May 26, 2025

Sameer  Mah a patra B h arat Ku mar J a i n Vi n eet Ch o rar i a
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

(ACS:25887)

Place : Chicago Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai
Date : May 26, 2025 Date : May 26, 2025 Date : May 26, 2025

Fo r  an d o n  beh alf  o f  th e B o ard o f  D i r ecto r s o f  
Yo u  B ro adba n d In dia  Limited
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Statemen t o f  P ro f i t an d Lo ss f o r  th e year  en ded March  3 1 , 2 0 2 5

P a rticu lar s No tes
F o r th e year  en ded 

March  3 1 , 2 0 2 5
F o r th e year  en ded 

March  3 1 , 2 0 2 4

In co me
Service revenue (includes amount referred in note 42) 9,570                                                11,327                                       
Other operating income 24 312                                                     544                                               
Rev en u e f ro m o perati o n s 9 ,8 8 2                              1 1 ,8 7 1                       
Other income 25 30                                                        40                                                  
To tal in co me 9 ,9 1 2                              1 1 ,9 1 1                       
Expen ses
Employee benefit expenses 26 1,797                                                1,618                                          
Network expenses and IT outsourcing cost 27 4,970                                                5,567                                          
License fees (includes amount referred to in note 47) 766                                                     906                                               
Subscriber acquisition and servicing expenditure 28 1,369                                                1,671                                          
Advertisement, business promotion expenditure and content cost 29 102                                                     38                                                  
Other expenses 30 674                                                     772                                               

9 ,6 7 8                              1 0 ,5 7 2                       
P ro f i t/( Lo ss)  bef o re f i n an ce co sts, deprec iati o n , 
amo rti satio n  an d tax

2 3 4                                  1 ,3 3 9                          

Finance costs 31 2,498                                                2,210                                          
Depreciation 6 3,632                                                3,997                                          
Amortisation 7 2                                                            2                                                      
P ro f i t/( Lo ss)  bef o re tax ( 5 ,8 9 8 )                            ( 4 ,8 7 0 )                        
Tax expen se:
    - Current tax 40 -                                                      -                                                
    - Deferred tax 40 -                                                      -                                                
P ro f i t/( Lo ss)  af ter  tax  f o r  th e year ( 5 ,8 9 8 )                            ( 4 ,8 7 0 )                        
Oth er  co mpreh en siv e in co me/( lo ss)
Items n o t to  be reclassi f ied to  pr o f i t  o r  ( lo ss) :
Re-measurement gains/(losses) of defined benefit plans 38 (4)                                                          (2)                                                    
Income tax effect 40 -                                                      -                                                
Oth er  co mpreh en siv e in co me/( lo ss)  f o r  th e year , n et o f  tax ( 4 )                                     ( 2 )                                 
To tal co mpreh en si v e i n co me/( lo ss)  f o r  th e year ( 5 ,9 0 2 )                            ( 4 ,8 7 2 )                        
Earn in g/( Lo ss)  per  eq u i ty sh are o f   Rs. 1 0  each : 41

Basic (Rs.) ( 7 .8 6 )                               ( 6 .4 9 )                           
Diluted (Rs.) ( 7 .8 6 )                               ( 6 .4 9 )                           

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements

As per our report of even date

F o r S.R. B atlibo i  &  Asso cia tes LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No: 101049W/E300004

Ami t P o ddar J agbi r  Sin gh Abh i j i t Kish o re
Partner Director Director
Membership No.: 509192 (DIN:03258009) (DIN: 09042186) 

Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai Place : Delhi
Date : May 26, 2025 Date : May 26, 2025 Date : May 26, 2025

Sameer  Mah apatra B h arat Ku mar  J a i n Vi n eet Ch o rar ia
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

(ACS:25887)

Place : Chicago Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai
Date : May 26, 2025 Date : May 26, 2025 Date : May 26, 2025

F o r an d o n  beh alf  o f  th e B o ard o f  D i recto rs o f  
Yo u  B ro adba n d In dia  Limi ted

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
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Statemen t o f  Ch an ges in  Eq u ity f o r  th e  y ear  en ded  Ma rch  31 , 2 0 25

A. Eq u i ty  sh are capi tal:

Eq u ity sh ares o f   Rs.1 0  eac h i ssu ed, subscr ibed a n d f u lly  paid
Nu mbers Amo u nt

As at Apri l 1 , 2 0 2 3 7 5 ,0 0 4,9 6 0                    7 ,5 0 0                  
 Issue of share capital during the year -                                                         -                                      

 As at Ma rch  3 1 , 2 02 4 7 5 ,0 0 4,9 6 0                    7 ,5 0 0                  

 Issue of share capital during the year -                                                         -                                      
 As at Ma rch  3 1 , 2 02 5 7 5 ,0 0 4,9 6 0                    7 ,5 0 0                  

B . Oth er eq u ity

Capi tal reserv e
Secu r i t ies 
premi u m

Retain ed 
earn in gs

As at Apri l 1 , 2 0 2 3 2 6 8                                    3 ,7 2 7                  ( 1 8 ,7 3 4 )             ( 1 4 ,73 9 )             
Profit/(Loss) for the year ended March 31, 2024 -                                                         -                                    (4,870)                            (4,870)                            
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year ended March 31, 2024 -                                                         -                                    (2)                                       (2)                                       
To tal c omprehen si v e in co me/( lo ss) -                                     -                      ( 4 ,87 2 )                ( 4 ,87 2 )                

 As at Ma rch  3 1 , 2 02 4 2 6 8                                    3 ,7 2 7                  ( 2 3 ,6 0 6 )             ( 1 9 ,61 1 )             
Profit/(Loss) for the year ended March 31, 2025 -                                                         -                                    (5,898)                            (5,898)                            
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year ended March 31, 2025 -                                                         -                                    (4)                                       (4)                                       
To tal c omprehen si v e in co me/( lo ss) -                                     -                      ( 5 ,90 2 )                ( 5 ,90 2 )                

 As at Ma rch  3 1 , 2 02 5 2 6 8                                    3 ,7 2 7                  ( 2 9 ,5 0 8 )             ( 2 5 ,51 3 )             

As per our report of even date

Fo r  S.R. B atlibo i  & Asso cia tes LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No: 101049W/E300004

Ami t Po ddar J a gbi r  Sin gh
Partner Director
Membership No.: 509192 (DIN:03258009)

Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai Place : Delhi
Date : May 26, 2025 Date : May 26, 2025 Date : May 26, 2025

Sameer Ma ha patra Vin eet Ch o rar i a
Chief Executive Officer Company Secretary

(ACS:25887)
Place : Chicago Place : Mumbai
Date : May 26, 2025 Date : May 26, 2025 Date : May 26, 2025

P artic ulars

Place : Mumbai

To tal

Fo r  an d o n  beh alf  o f  th e B oa rd o f  D i recto rs o f  
Y ou  B ro adban d In di a  Limited

Reserv es an d su rplu s

B h ara t Ku mar J a in
Chief Financial Officer

Abh i j i t Ki sh o re
Director
(DIN: 09042186) 

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
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Statemen t o f  Ca sh  F lo ws f o r  the year  en ded Ma r ch 3 1 , 2 0 25

P arti cu la rs
F o r  th e yea r en ded 

Mar ch  3 1 , 2 0 2 5
F o r  the year  en ded 

March  3 1 , 20 2 4
Operati n g a ctiv i ties

P ro f i t/( Loss)  bef o re ta x (5,898)                                                  (4,870)                                          

Adj u stmen ts to  reco nc i le pro f i t/( lo ss)  befo r e tax  to  n et c ash  f lo ws:

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (including RoU Assets) 3,632                                                    3,997                                            
Amortisation of intangible assets 2                                                                2                                                        
Loss/(Gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment (net) 21                                                            11                                                    
Finance costs (including Fair value change in Financial instruments) 2,498                                                    2,210                                            
Allowance for doubtful debts / advances (3)                                                              10                                                    
Bad debts / advances written off 12                                                            71                                                    
Liabilities / provisions no longer required written back (312)                                                       (541)                                               
Interest income (30)                                                          (40)                                                  

Wo rkin g capi tal adj u stmen ts

(Increase) in trade receivables (51)                                                          (14)                                                  

(Increase)/Decrease in other financial and non-financial assets (163)                                                       30                                                    

Increase in trade payables 737                                                         179                                                 

Increase in other financial and non-financial liabilities 393                                                         720                                                 

Cash  f lo ws f rom operati n g a cti v i ties 8 3 8                                    1 ,7 6 5                           

Income tax refund/(paid) (including TDS) (net) 143                                                         (99)                                                  

Net cash  f lo ws f rom operati n g a cti v i t ies 9 8 1                                    1 ,6 6 6                           

In v esti n g ac tiv i t i es

(604)                                                       (833)                                               

20                                                            21                                                    

(2)                                                              530                                                 
Interest received 22                                                            51                                                    

Net cash  f lo ws f rom ( used i n )  i n v esti n g acti v i ti es ( 5 6 4 )                                   ( 2 3 1 )                             

F in an ci n g ac ti v i t ies

Payment of interest and finance charges (658)                                                       (652)                                               

Payment of lease liabilities (810)                                                       (655)                                               

Proceeds from short term borrowings 1,050                                                    8,820                                            

Repayment of short term borrowings (20)                                                          (8,901)                                          

Net cash  f lo ws ( u sed in )  f in anc i n g ac ti v i t ies ( 4 3 8 )                                   ( 1 ,3 8 8 )                          

Net i nc rease/( decrea se)  i n  cash  an d cash  eq ui v alen ts ( 2 1 )                                     4 7                                  

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 310                                                         263                                                 

Cash  an d cash eq ui v alen ts at th e en d o f  the year  ( ref er  n o te 1 1 ) 2 8 9                                    3 1 0                               

Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (including CWIP and intangible assets 
under development)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

Maturity/(Placement) for Fixed deposits with banks having original maturity of 3 to 12 months
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1 . D i sclosu re o f  c ha n ges in  li abi li t ies  ar isi ng f rom f i n a nc in g acti v i ti es o n  ac co u n t o f  n o n - cash  tran sac tio n s

P artic u lars Sh o rt term bo rro wi n gs
In terest accrued bu t 

n o t du e
Lea se liabi li t i es

B alan ce as at  Apr i l  1 , 20 2 3 8 ,9 0 1                                 4 8                                  1 ,6 51                      
(i) Cash flow Items

Net proceed / (repayment) of borrowings (81)                                                          -                                                  -                                          
Payment of Interest and finance charges     -                                                          (652)                                               -                                          
Payment of lease liabilities -                                                          -                                                  (655)                                      

(ii) Non - cash items
Finance cost accrued (charged to statement of profit and loss) -                                                          654                                                 157                                        
Additions -                                                          -                                                  555                                        
Disposals -                                                          -                                                  (50)                                          

B alan ce as at Ma rch  3 1, 20 2 4 8 ,8 2 0                                 5 0                                  1 ,6 58                      

(i) Cash flow Items
Net proceed / (repayment) of borrowings 1,030                                                    -                                                  -                                          
Payment of Interest and finance charges     -                                                          (658)                                               -                                          
Payment of lease liabilities -                                                          -                                                  (810)                                      

(ii) Non - cash items
Finance cost accrued (charged to statement of profit and loss) -                                                          660                                                 131                                        
Additions -                                                          -                                                  346                                        
Disposals -                                                          -                                                  (152)                                      

B alan ce as at Ma rch  3 1, 20 2 5 9 ,8 5 0                                 5 2                                  1 ,1 73                      

2 . Th e abov e Statement o f  Cash  Flo ws h as been  prepared u nder  th e i ndi rect meth od as set o u t i n  In d AS 7 o n  Statemen t o f  Ca sh  Flo ws.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date

F or  S.R. Batli bo i  & Asso c iates LLP

Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration No: 101049W/E300004

Amit P o ddar J a gbir  Si n gh Abh i j i t  Kish o re

Partner Director Director

Membership No.: 509192 (DIN:03258009) (DIN: 09042186) 

Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai Place : Delhi

Date : May 26, 2025 Date : May 26, 2025 Date : May 26, 2025

Sameer  Maha pa tra B harat Kuma r J ain Vi n eet Ch o rar ia

Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

(ACS:25887)

Place : Chicago Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai

Date : May 26, 2025 Date : May 26, 2025 Date : May 26, 2025

F or  a n d o n  beha lf  o f  th e B oard o f  D i rec tors o f  
Y o u  Bro adba n d India  Li mi ted

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
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1. Corporate Information 

You Broadband India Limited (herein referred to as “YBIL” or “the Company”), a wholly owned subsidiary of Vodafone Idea Limited 
was incorporated on November 13, 2000 under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 applicable in India. The registered 
office of the Company is situated at 10th Floor, Birla Centurion, Century Mills Compound, Pandurang Budhkar Marg, Worli, Mumbai 
– 400030, India. 
 
The Company is engaged in providing high speed broadband internet access through cable network, high bandwidth internet 
broadband services to retail, enterprise segment and infrastructure support to licensed telecommunication service providers. 
 
The financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue on 
May 26, 2025.  
 
2. Statement of compliance 
 
The financial statements of the Company comprising of Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss, Statement of Changes in 
Equity and Statement of Cash Flows together with the notes have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards 
(Ind AS) notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 
and relevant amendment rules issued thereafter. 

3. Basis of preparation 

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the 
consideration given in exchange for goods and services on the transaction date.  

All financial information presented in Rs. has been rounded off to lakhs unless otherwise stated. 

The Company reclassifies / regroups prior year figures to conform to the present classification. 
 
The Company has elected to present Profit/(Loss) before finance costs, depreciation, amortisation and tax as a separate line item 
on the face of the statement of profit and loss. In its measurement, the Company does not include finance costs, depreciation, 
amortisation and tax. 
 
The financial statements are based on the classification provisions contained in Ind AS 1, ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’ 
and Division II of schedule III of the Companies Act, 2013.  

4. Material Accounting Policies 
 

a) Revenue recognition 
 
Revenue is recognised when a customer obtains control of the goods or receive services and thus has the ability to direct the use 
and obtain the benefits from the goods or services. Revenue is measured at the Transaction price i.e. an amount that reflects the 
consideration, to which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to customers, excluding 
amounts collected on behalf of third parties. Taxes and duties collected by the seller / service provider are to be deposited with 
the government and not received by the Company on their own account. Accordingly, it is excluded from revenue. The Company 
evaluates its exposure to significant risks and reward associated with the revenue arrangements in order to determine its position 
of a principal or an agent in this regard. Consideration payable to a customer includes cash or credit or other items expected to 
be payable to the customer (or to other parties that purchase the entity’s goods or services from the customer). The Company 
accounts for consideration payable to a customer as a reduction from the transaction price unless the payment to the customer 
is in exchange for a distinct goods or service that the customer transfers to the entity. 
 
i. Revenue from supply of services  
 
Fixed line data revenue: 
Revenue on account of fixed line data services (net of discount, rebates, waivers and indirect taxes) is recognised on time 
proportion basis in accordance with related contracts. Installation charges are recognised as revenue on completion of 
installation. 
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Multiple element contracts: 
Bundle packages that include multiple elements, at the inception of the arrangement, the Company determines whether it is 
necessary to separate the separately identifiable elements and apply the corresponding revenue recognition policy to each 
elements. Total package revenue is allocated among the identified elements based on their relative standalone price. 
 
ii. Unbilled Income 
Unbilled income is the right to consideration in exchange for services transferred to the customer. If the Company performs its 
obligation by transferring services to a customer before the same is invoiced to the customer, unbilled income is recognised for 
the earned consideration that is conditional on satisfaction of performance obligation. 

 
iii. Trade receivables 
A receivable represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage of time is 
required before payment of the consideration is due). Refer to accounting policies of financial assets in section 4 m) financial 
instruments – initial recognition and subsequent measurement. 

 
iv. Advance from customer and deferred revenue 
Advance from customer and deferred revenue is the obligation to transfer services to a customer for which the Company has 
invoiced / received consideration from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers services to 
the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made. Advance from customer and deferred revenue are 
recognised as revenue when the Company fulfils its performance obligations under the contract. 
 
v. Interest income 
Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and 
the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is recorded using the applicable Effective Interest Rate (EIR), 
which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s 
net carrying amount on initial recognition. 

 
b)  Leases 
 
The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys the right 
to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.  
 
Company as a lessee  
 
The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of 
low value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right 
to use the underlying assets. The Company’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for immovable properties. 
 
i) Right-of-use assets  
The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset is 
available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and 
adjusted for any re-measurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities 
recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives 
received. 
Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 
 
If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a 
purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset. The right-of-use assets are also subject to 
impairment (refer note 4 j) 

 
ii) Lease liabilities  
At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease 
payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments less any lease incentives receivable and 
variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase 
option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term 
reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are 
recognised as expenses in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.  
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In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease 
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement date, 
the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In 
addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is re-measured if there is a modification i.e. a change in the lease term or a change 
in the lease payments or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset. The re-measurement is of 
lease liability is done by discounting the revised lease payments using the Company’s incremental borrowing rate at the effective 
date of modification. 
 
iii) Short-term leases and leases of low value assets  
The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases (i.e., those leases that have a lease term 
of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low value 
assets recognition exemption to leases that are considered to be of low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases 
of low value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 
 
c) Employee benefits 

i. Defined Contribution Plan  
 
Contributions to Provident and Pension funds are funded with the appropriate authorities and charged to the Statement of Profit 
and Loss when the employees have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.  
 
The Company has no obligation other than contribution payable to these funds. 

 
ii. Defined Benefit Plan 
 
The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan which is a funded plan. In case of funded plan, the Company makes contribution 
to a separately administered fund with the Insurance Companies. The Company maintains a target level of funding to be 
maintained over a period of time based on estimation of the payments. Any deficit in plan assets managed by Insurance 
Companies as compared to the liability based on an independent actuarial valuation is recognised as a liability. The cost of 
providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit method, with actuarial valuations 
being carried out at periodic intervals.. 
 
Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net 
interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the Balance Sheet with a corresponding charge or 
credit to Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) in the period in which they occur. Re-measurements are not reclassified to 
Statement of Profit and Loss in subsequent periods. 
 
Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The Company recognises the 
following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss: 
 
• Service costs; and 
 
• Net interest expense or income 

 
iii. Short-term and other long-term employee benefits 
 

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in respect of salaries, wages and other short-term employee benefits 
in the period the related service is rendered at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that 
service. 
 

Provision for leave benefits to employees is based on actuarial valuation done by projected unit credit method at the reporting 
date. The related re-measurements are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they arise. 
 

d) Annual revenue share license fees  
 

The variable license fees, computed basis of adjusted gross revenue, are charged at prescribed rates to the Statement of Profit 
and Loss in the period in which the related revenue arises as per the license agreement of the licensed service area and DoT 
amendments issued from time to time. 
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e) Foreign currency transactions 
 

The Company’s financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (Rs.) which is also the Company’s functional currency.  
 

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at the Rs. spot rate on the date the transaction first qualifies for 
recognition. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates 
of exchange on the reporting date. 
 
Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised on net basis within finance cost in 
the Statement of Profit and Loss. 
 

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are recognised using the exchange rates 
at the dates of the initial transactions. 

 
f) Taxes 
 
Income tax expense represents the sum of current tax and deferred tax.  
 
i. Current tax 
 
Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. 
Current tax is based on the taxable income and calculated using the applicable tax rates and tax laws. The tax rates and tax laws 
used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date.  
 
Current tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss in correlation to the underlying 
transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. 

 
ii. Deferred tax 
 
Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial 
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax assets are generally 
recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which 
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. 
 
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting date and reduced to the extent it is no longer 
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow the benefit of part or that entire deferred tax asset to be utilised. 
Unrecognized deferred tax assets are re-assessed at the end of each reporting date and are recognised to the extent it has become 
probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.  
 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or 
the liability is settled, based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.  
Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss in correlation to the underlying 
transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.  
 
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against 
current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation statute. 

 
g) Current / Non – current classification 
 
An asset is classified as current when  
 
a) It is expected to be realized or consumed in the Company’s normal operating cycle; 
b) It is held primarily for the purpose of trading; 
c) It is expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period; or 
d) If it is cash or cash equivalent, unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months 
after the reporting period. 
 
Any asset not conforming to the above is classified as non-current. 
A liability is classified as current when 
 
a) It is expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle of the company; 
b) It is held primarily for the purposes of trading; 
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c) It is expected to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or 
d) The company have no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting 
period. 
 
Any liability not conforming to the above is classified as non-current. 

 
h) Property, Plant and Equipment 
 
Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) and Capital work in progress (CWIP) held for use in the rendering of services and supply of 
goods, or for administrative purposes, are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment 
losses, if any. Cost includes all direct costs relating to acquisition and installation of Property, Plant and Equipment, non-
refundable duties and borrowing cost relating to qualifying assets. CWIP represents cost of property, plant and equipment not 
ready for intended use as on the reporting date. When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at 
intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. Subsequent costs are included in the 
assets carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits 
associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost can be measured reliably. All other repair and maintenance costs 
are recognised in the statement of profit and loss as incurred.  
 
Depreciation commences once such assets are available for use in the intended condition and location. Depreciation is provided 
using straight-line method on pro rata basis over their estimated useful economic lives as given below. The useful life is taken as 
prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013 except where the estimated useful economic life has been assessed to be 
lower. 
 

 
 
When any significant part of property, plant and equipment is discarded or replaced, the carrying value of discarded / replaced 
part is derecognized. Any gains or losses arising from retirement or disposal of property, plant and equipment are determined as 
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss on the date of retirement or disposal.  
 
i) Intangible Assets  
 
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Cost includes all direct costs relating to 
acquisition of Intangible assets and borrowing cost relating to qualifying assets.  Subsequently, intangible assets are carried at 
cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any 

 
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite. There are no intangible assets assessed with 
indefinite useful life.  
 
Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life. The amortisation period, residual value and the 
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each year. Changes in the 
expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered 
to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The 
amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss unless such 
expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset.  
 
 

P arti cu lar s  Esti mated u sef u l li f e ( in  yea rs)
Leasehold improvements Period of lease or 10 years whichever is lower
Plant and machinery

Optic Fibre 15 years
Computer hardware 3 years
Other plant and equipment 3 - 9 years

Office Equipments 5 years
Furniture and Fixtures 5 years
RoU Assets

-Bandwidth (IRU) Over the period of lease
-Others 3 to 5

Vehicles 4 years
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Intangible assets are amortised on straight line method as under: 
• Cost of license fee is amortised on straight line method from the date of launch of circle/renewal of license over the 

unexpired period of the license.  
• Software, which is not an integral part of hardware, is treated as an intangible asset and is amortised over its useful economic 

life as estimated by the management to be 3 years. 
Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal 
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is 
derecognised. 
 
j) Impairment of Non – Financial Assets 
 
Tangible (including RoU assets) and Intangible assets are reviewed for impairment, whenever events or changes in circumstances 
indicate that the carrying amount of such assets may not be recoverable. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of 
the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). When it is not possible to estimate the 
recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which 
the asset belongs. 
 
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated 
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of 
the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less cost of disposal, an appropriate valuation 
model is used. If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, an 
impairment loss is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss by reducing the carrying amount of the asset (or cash generating 
unit) to its recoverable amount.  
 
Impairment losses recognized in the earlier periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indication that the loss has 
decreased or no longer exists. If such indication exists, the Company estimates the asset’s (or cash generating unit’s) recoverable 
amount. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in estimates used to determine the 
assets’ recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the 
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that 
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had such impairment loss 
not been recognised for the asset (or cash generating unit) in prior years. Any reversal of an impairment loss is recognised 
immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss.  
 
k) Borrowing Costs 
 
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. All borrowing 
costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred 
 
l) Cash and cash equivalents 

 
Cash and cash equivalents in the Balance Sheet comprise of cash at bank and on hand and short-term deposits with an original 
maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. For the purpose of the statement 
of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank 
overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company’s cash management. 
 
m) Financial Instruments 

 
Initial recognition and measurement 
Financial instruments (assets and liabilities) are recognised when the Company becomes a party to a contract that gives rise to a 
financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. 
 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the 
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities, other than those designated as fair value through profit or loss 
(FVTPL), are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial 
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are 
recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 
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i. Financial assets  
 
All regular way purchase or sale of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchase 
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation 
or convention in the marketplace.  
 
Subsequent measurement 
 
All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value, depending on 
the classification of the financial assets: 
a) Financial assets measured at amortised cost 
b) Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) – The Company does not have any assets classified as 
FVTPL. 
c) Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) – The Company does not have any 
assets classified as FVTOCI. 
 
I. Financial assets measured at amortised cost 
 
A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:  
 
• The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and  
• Contractual terms of the instruments give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest 
on the principal amount outstanding.  
 
After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the Effective Interest Rate 
(EIR) method. EIR is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or received 
that form an integral part of the EIR, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the debt 
instrument or where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.  
 
The EIR amortisation is included in other income in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The losses arising from impairment are 
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. This category generally applies to trade and other receivables, loans, etc.  
 
II. Financial assets measured at FVTPL 
 
FVTPL is a residual category for financial assets in the nature of debt instruments. Financial assets included within the FVTPL 
category are measured at fair value with all changes recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. This category also includes 
derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge 
relationships as defined by Ind AS 109. 
 
Derecognition 
 
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar financial assets) is primarily 
derecognised when:  
 
• The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or 
• The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received 
cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘passthrough’ arrangement; and either 
- the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or 
- the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control 
of the asset. 
  
Impairment of financial assets 
 
In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of 
impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:  
 
• Debt instruments measured at amortised cost e.g. loans and bank deposits 
• Trade receivables 
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• Other financial assets not designated as FVTPL  
 
For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines whether there has been 
a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used 
to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, 
credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, 
then the entity reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.  
 
ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all the 
cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. Lifetime ECL are the expected 
credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a 
portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date. 
 
The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on Trade receivables. The application of 
simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance 
based on lifetime ECL at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition. 

 
ii. Financial liabilities 
 
Subsequent measurement  
 
All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method or at FVTPL.  
 
Financial liabilities at amortised cost  
 
After initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings and other payables are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the 
EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as 
through the EIR amortisation process. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition 
and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the Statement of Profit 
and Loss.  
 
Financial liabilities at FVTPL 
 
Financial liabilities are classified as FVTPL when the financial liabilities are held for trading or are designated as FVTPL on initial 
recognition. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near 
term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company that are not designated as hedging 
instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for 
trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised 
in the profit or loss.  

 
De-recognition 
 
A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. In case, an existing 
financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability 
are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the de-recognition of the original liability and the 
recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss. 

 
iii. Derivative financial instruments 
 
The Company uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts and interest rate swaps, to manage its 
foreign currency risks and interest rate risks, respectively. These derivative instruments are not designated as cash flow, fair value 
or net investment hedges and are entered into for period consistent with currency and interest exposures. Such derivative 
financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are 
subsequently re-measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the 
fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative. Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair 
value of derivatives are taken directly to the Statement of Profit and Loss. 
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iv. Offsetting financial instruments 
 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Balance Sheet if there is a currently 
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or to realise the assets 
and settle the liabilities simultaneously.  
 
n) Fair value measurement 
 
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the 
asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest. 
 
The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data is available to 
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs. 

 
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair 
value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole: 
 
 Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 
 Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly 

or indirectly observable 
 Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is 

unobservable 
 
For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether 
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is 
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) (a) on the date of the event or change in circumstances that caused the 
transfer or (b) at the end of each reporting period or (c) at the beginning of each reporting period. 

 
o) Earnings Per Share 
 
The earnings considered in ascertaining the Company’s Earnings Per Share (EPS) is the net profit after tax.  
EPS is disclosed on basic and diluted basis. Basic EPS is computed by dividing the profit / loss for the period attributable to the 
shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period. The diluted EPS is 
calculated on the same basis as basic EPS, after adjusting for the effects of potential dilutive equity shares unless the effect of the 
potential dilutive equity shares is anti-dilutive. 

 
p) Provisions and Contingent liabilities 
 
Provisions: 
 
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is 
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable 
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the Statement of Profit 
and Loss.  
 
If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when 
appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is 
recognised as a finance cost.  
 
Contingent Liabilities: 

 
A Contingent Liability is disclosed where there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but probably will not, 
require an outflow of resources. Contingent Assets are not recognised.  
 
q) Business combinations 
 
Business combinations are accounted for using Ind AS 103 ‘Business combination’. Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for 
using the acquisition method unless the transaction is between entities under common control. Business combinations arising 
from transfer of interests in entities that are under common control, are accounted using pooling of interest method wherein, 
assets and liabilities of the combining entities are reflected at their carrying value. No adjustment is made to reflect fair values, or 
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recognize any new assets or liabilities other than those required to harmonise accounting policies. The identity of the reserves is 
preserved and appears in the financial statements of the transferee in the same form in which they appeared in the financial 
statements of the transferor. 
 
r) Recent pronouncements 
 
Amendments to Ind AS  
 
Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (India 
Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. During year ended March 31, 2025, MCA has notified Ind AS-117 
Insurance Contracts (vide notification no G.S.R 492( E))and amendments to Ind AS 116- Leases, relating to sale and leaseback 
transactions (vide notification no G.S.R 554( E)), applicable to the Company on or after April 1, 2024, The Company has reviewed 
the new pronouncements and based on its evaluation has determined that it does not have any material impact on the Financial 
Statements of the Company. 
 
5. Use of Estimates, assumptions and judgments 
 
The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect 
the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures including the disclosure of 
contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require an adjustment 
to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities in future periods. Difference between actual results and estimates are recognised in 
the periods in which the results are known / materialise. 
 
The Company has based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. 
Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or 
circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they 
occur. 
 
Estimates and Assumptions 
 
i. Taxes 
 
The Company provide for tax considering the applicable tax regulations and based on reasonable estimates. Management 
periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns giving due considerations to tax laws and establishes provisions in the 
event if required as a result of differing interpretation or due to retrospective amendments, if any. 
 
The recognition of deferred tax assets is based on availability of sufficient taxable profits in the Company against which such 
assets can be utilized. Significant management judgment is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be 
recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies. Further 
details about taxes refer note 40. 
 
ii. Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits) 
 
The Company’s obligation on account of gratuity is determined based on actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves 
making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the 
discount rate, future salary increases, attrition rate and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its 
long-term nature, these liabilities are highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions.  
 
All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date. The parameter subject to frequent changes is the discount rate. In 
determining the appropriate discount rate, the management considers the interest rates of government bonds in currencies 
consistent with the currencies of the post-employment benefit obligation. 
 
The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables in India. Those mortality tables tend to change only at interval in 
response to demographic changes. Future salary increases are based on expected future inflation rates. 
Further details about gratuity obligations are given in note 38. 
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iii. Allowance for Trade receivable 
 
The Company follows a ‘simplified approach’ (i.e. based on lifetime ECL) for recognition of impairment loss allowance on Trade 
receivables. For the purpose of measuring lifetime ECL allowance for trade receivables, the Company estimates irrecoverable 
amounts based on the ageing of the receivable balances and historical experience. Further, a large number of minor receivables 
are grouped into homogeneous groups and assessed for impairment collectively. Individual trade receivables are written off when 
management deems them not to be collectible. Refer Note 10. 
 
iv. Useful life of Property, Plant and Equipment and intangible assets 
 

The useful life to depreciate property, plant and equipment is based on technical obsolescence, nature of assets, estimated usage 
of the assets, operating conditions of the asset, and manufacturers’ warranties, maintenance and support period etc. The charge 
for the depreciation and amortisation is derived after considering the expected residual value at end of the useful life. 
 
The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are reviewed 
by the management at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. Further details about property, plant 
and equipment and intangible assets are given in Note 6 and 7. 
 
v. Provisions and Contingent liabilities  
 

Provisions and contingent liabilities are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. 
Evaluations of uncertain provisions and contingent liabilities and assets requires judgement and assumptions regarding the 
probability of realization and the timing and amount, or range of amounts, that may ultimately be incurred. Such estimates may 
vary from the ultimate outcome as a result of differing interpretations of laws and facts. Refer Note 33 for further details about 
Contingent liabilities. 

 
vi. Leases - Estimating the incremental borrowing rate 
  
The Company cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses its incremental borrowing rate 
(IBR) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the Company would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, 
and with a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic 
environment. The Company estimates the IBR using observable inputs (such as market interest rates) when available and is 
required to make certain specific estimates such as Company’s credit rating. 
 
vii. Leases-Estimate of lease period 
 
Ind AS 116 requires lessees to determine the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease adjusted with any option to 
extend or terminate the lease, if the use of such option is reasonably certain. The Company makes an assessment on the expected 
lease term on a lease-by-lease basis and thereby assesses whether it is reasonably certain that any options to extend or terminate 
the contract will be exercised. 
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Note 6
P ro perty , P lan t an d Eq u i pment ( in clu di n g Ro U Assets)

P ar ti cu lars
Leaseh o ld 

i mpro v ement
P la n t an d 

mach i n ery
F ur n itur e 

an d f i xtu res
Of f i ce 

eq u i pmen ts
Veh i cles Ro U Assets To tal

As a t Apr i l 1 , 2 0 2 3 7                       4 6,3 72          2 3                   1 5 2                1 6                   2 ,63 0                      4 9 ,2 0 0          
Additions -                               1,602                      -                            5                                 -                            555                                         2,162                      
Disposals/Adjustments -                               (170)                        -                            (1)                               -                            (667)                                       (838)                        

 As a t Mar ch  3 1 , 2 0 2 4 7                       4 7,8 04          2 3                   1 5 6                1 6                   2 ,51 8                      5 0 ,5 2 4          

Additions -                               656                          -                            5                                 -                            346                                         1,007                      
Disposals/Adjustments (5)                                  (171)                        (2)                               (7)                               (5)                               (972)                                       (1,162)                    

 As a t Mar ch  3 1 , 2 0 2 5 2                       4 8,2 89          2 1                   1 5 4                1 1                   1 ,89 2                      5 0 ,3 6 9          

Acc umulated D epreci ati on
As a t Apr i l 1 , 2 0 2 3 7                       2 8,2 50          1 8                   1 4 2                1 6                   1 ,24 3                      2 9 ,6 7 6          

Depreciation charge for the year -                               3,291                      2                                 6                                 -                            698                                         3,997                      
Disposals/Adjustments -                               (138)                        -                            (1)                               -                            (617)                                       (756)                        

 As a t Mar ch  3 1 , 2 0 2 4 7                       3 1,4 03          2 0                   1 4 7                1 6                   1 ,32 4                      3 2 ,9 1 7          

Depreciation charge for the year -                               3,025                      1                                 4                                 -                            602                                         3,632                      
Disposals/Adjustments (5)                                  (130)                        (2)                               (7)                               (5)                               (838)                                       (987)                        

 As a t Mar ch  3 1 , 2 0 2 5 2                       3 4,2 98          1 9                   1 4 4                1 1                   1 ,08 8                      3 5 ,5 6 2          -                            
Net Bo o k Valu e

 As a t Mar ch  3 1 , 2 0 2 5 -                   1 3,9 91          2                     1 0                   -                 80 4                          1 4 ,8 0 7          
 As a t Mar ch  3 1 , 2 0 2 4 -                   1 6,4 01          3                     9                     -                 1 ,19 4                      1 7 ,6 0 7          

Less th an  1  year 1 - 2  years 2 - 3  years
Mo re th an  3  

years
To tal

 As at March  3 1, 20 25

Projects in progress 197                                     28                         -                 -                          225          

To tal 1 9 7                       28               -          -                22 5     

 As at March  3 1, 20 24

Projects in progress 202                                     40                         -                 -                          242          

To tal 2 0 2                       40               -          -                24 2     

Note - Project in progress are reviewed by the management on regular basis and deployed as per business requirement.

Th e f o llo wi n g i s agei n g sch edu le o f  Capital wo rk- i n -pro gress ( CWIP ) :

P articu lars
Amo u n t i n  CWIP  f or  a  per i o d o f
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No te 7
In tangi ble assets

P arti culars
Li cen se 

f ees**
Co mpu ter  -  

So f tware
To tal

Co st
As at Apri l 1 , 2 0 2 3 30                              13                              43                              
Additions -                            -                            -                            
Disposals/Adjustments -                            -                            -                            

 As at March  3 1 , 2 0 2 4 30                              13                              43                              
Additions -                            -                            -                            
Disposals/Adjustments -                            (1)                               (1)                               

 As at March  3 1 , 2 0 2 5 30                              12                              42                              
Accu mu lated Amo rti sati o n
As at Apri l 1 , 2 0 2 3 9                                 11                              20                              
Amortisation charge for the year 2                                 -* 2                                 
Disposals/Adjustments -                            -                            -                            

 As at March  3 1 , 2 0 2 4 11                              11                              22                              
Amortisation charge for the year 2                                 -                            2                                 
Disposals/Adjustments -                            (1)                               (1)                               

 As at March  3 1 , 2 0 2 5 13                              10                              23                              
Net Bo o k Valu e

 As at March  3 1 , 2 0 2 5 17                              2                                 19                              
 As at March  3 1 , 2 0 2 4 19                              2                                 21                              

** The remaining amortisation period of license fees as at March 31, 2025 is 13 years (March 31, 2024: 14 years) based on the telecom
service license validity period.

*Numbers are below one lakh under the rounding off convention adopted by the Company and accordingly not reported.

No te 8
Oth er n o n - c u rren t f i n an ci al assets

P arti cu lar s
As at 

March  3 1 , 2 0 2 5
As at 

Ma rch  3 1 , 2 0 2 4
Deposits with body corporate and others

- Considered good 113                                                   129                                                    
- Considered doubtful 23                                                      23                                                        

Deposits and balances with government authorities
- Considered good 42                                                      41                                                        
- Considered doubtful 84                                                      84                                                        

Margin money deposits 39                                                      60                                                        
3 0 1                                3 3 7                                 

Allowance for doubtful advances (refer note 36) (107)                                                 (107)                                                  
To tal 1 9 4                                2 3 0                                 
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No te 9
Oth er n o n - c u rren t assets

P arti cu lar s
As at 

March  3 1 , 2 0 2 5
As at 

Ma rch  3 1 , 2 0 2 4
Advance income tax (net) 45                                                      77                                                        
Others (consisting mainly  deposit against demands which are appealed 
against / subjudice)

- Considered good 189                                                   30                                                        

- Considered doubtful 4                                                          4                                                           
2 3 8                                1 1 1                                 

Allowance for doubtful advances (refer note 36) (4)                                                        (4)                                                         
To tal 2 3 4                                1 0 7                                 

No te 1 0
Trade receiv ables ( Un secu red, u n less o th erwi se stated)  ( i n clu di n g amo u n t r ef err ed to  i n  n o te 4 2 )

P arti cu lar s
As at 

March  3 1 , 2 0 2 5
As at 

Ma rch  3 1 , 2 0 2 4
Trade receivable - Considered good 183                                                   139                                                    

Allowance for doubtful debts (refer note 36) (53)                                                    (50)                                                      
                                  1 3 0                                       8 9  

Unbilled Receivables - Considered good -* -*

To tal 1 3 0                                8 9                                    
Trade receivable are secured for amounts receivable from certain parties who have provided security deposits of Rs. 4 Lakhs
(March 31, 2024 :  Rs. 14 Lakhs).

*Numbers are below one lakh under the rounding off convention adopted by the Company and accordingly not reported.

Th e f o llo wi n g is  agein g sch edu le of  trade recei v ables :

Less than  6  
mo n ths

6 mo nth s -  1  
yea r

1 - 2  years 2 - 3  y ea rs
Mor e th an  3  

years
To tal

 As a t Mar ch  3 1 , 2 0 2 5
Tr ade recei v a bles -  B i lled
Undisputed trade receivables – considered good                             133                                      13                                                    4                                                6                                             27 183                                      

13 3                13                      4                                6                             2 7                           1 83                        
Less : Allo wanc e f or  do ubtf u l trade recei v a bles -  B i lled ( 5 3 )                         

1 30                        
Tr ade recei v a bles -  Un bi lled -*
To tal 1 30                        
As a t Mar ch  3 1 , 2 0 2 4
Tr ade recei v a bles -  B i lled
Undisputed trade receivables – considered good                                88                                         7                                                    9                                                9                                             26 139                                      

8 8                  7                         9                                9                             2 6                           1 39                        
Less : Allo wanc e f or  do ubtf u l trade recei v a bles -  B i lled ( 5 0 )                         

89                           
Tr ade recei v a bles -  Un bi lled -*
To tal 89                           

P artic u lars
Ou tstan di n g f o r  fo llo win g per io ds f ro m du e da te of  paymen t

*Numbers are below one lakh under the rounding off convention adopted by the Company and accordingly not reported.
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No te 1 1

Cash  an d c ash  eq u i v alen ts

P arti cu lar s
As at 

March  3 1 , 2 0 2 5
As at 

Ma rch  3 1 , 2 0 2 4

Balances with banks

- In current accounts 283                                                   260                                                    

- In deposit accounts (having original maturity less than 3 months) -                                                    25                                                        

Cheques on hand 3                                                          23                                                        

Cash on hand 3                                                          2                                                           

To tal 2 8 9                                3 1 0                                 

No te 1 2

B an k balan c e o th er th an  cash  an d cash  eq u iv alen ts

P arti cu lar s
As at 

March  3 1 , 2 0 2 5
As at 

Ma rch  3 1 , 2 0 2 4

Margin money deposits 208                                                   218                                                    

Bank deposits with original maturity from 3-12 months 22                                                      20                                                        

To tal 2 3 0                                2 3 8                                 

No te 1 3

Oth er c u rren t f i n a n ci al assets

P arti cu lar s
As at 

March  3 1 , 2 0 2 5
As at 

Ma rch  3 1 , 2 0 2 4

Interest receivable 2                                                          3                                                           

To tal 2                                      3                                       

No te 1 4

Oth er c u rren t assets

P arti cu lar s
As at 

March  3 1 , 2 0 2 5
As at 

Ma rch  3 1 , 2 0 2 4

GST recoverable 896                                                   703                                                    

Prepaid expenses 75                                                      221                                                    

Others (includes amount referred to in note 38)

- Considered good 27                                                      28                                                        

- Considered doubtful 2                                                          8                                                           

1 ,0 0 0                             9 6 0                                 

Allowance for doubtful advances (refer note 36) (2)                                                        (8)                                                         

To tal 9 9 8                                9 5 2                                 
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No te 1 5
Eq u i ty sh are capital
P articu lars

Nu mbers Amo u n t Nu mbers Amo u n t
Eq u i ty sh are capital
Authorised share capital
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each 751,010,000                               75,101 751,010,000                               75,101 

      7 5 1 ,0 1 0 ,0 0 0                    7 5 ,1 0 1        7 5 1 ,0 1 0 ,0 0 0                    7 5 ,1 0 1  
Issu ed, su bscri bed an d pai d-u p sh are capital
Equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid up 75,004,960                                   7,500 75,004,960                                   7,500 

7 5 ,0 0 4 ,9 6 0 7 ,5 0 0 7 5 ,0 0 4 ,9 6 0 7 ,5 0 0

( a)  Reco n ci li at i o n  o f  n u mber  o f  sh ares o u tstan di n g
P articu lars

Nu mbers Amo u n t Nu mbers Amo u n t
Equity shares outstanding at the beginning of the year                    75,004,960                                   7,500                    75,004,960                                   7,500 
 Issue of share capital during the year                                              -                                                -                                                -                                                -   
Equity shares outstanding at the end of the year                    75,004,960                                   7,500                    75,004,960                                   7,500 

( b)  Terms/ r igh ts attach ed to  i ssu ed, su bscri bed an d paid u p eq u ity sh ares

( c)  D eta i ls  o f  sh areh o lders  h o ldi n g mo re th an  5 % sh ar es i n  th e Co mpan y

Nu mbers 
% h o ldi n g i n  th e 

class
Nu mbers 

% h o ldi n g in  th e 
class

Eq u i ty sh ares o f  Rs.1 0  each  f u lly  pai d
Vodafone Idea Limited, the holding company and its nominees                    75,004,960 100%                    75,004,960 100%

 As at March  3 1 , 2 0 2 5  As at March  3 1 , 2 0 2 4

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs.10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. In
the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity  shares will  be entitled  to receive remaining  assets of the Company, after distribution of 
all preferential amounts. The distribution will  be in proportion  to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

 As at March  3 1 , 2 0 2 5  As at March  3 1 , 2 0 2 4

 As at March  3 1 , 2 0 2 5  As at March  3 1 , 2 0 2 4
Name o f  th e sh areh o lders
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No te 1 6

Oth er Eq u i ty

P arti cu lar s
As at 

March  3 1 , 2 0 2 5
As at 

Ma rch  3 1 , 2 0 2 4

( i )  Capi tal reserv e1

Opening balance 268                                                   268                                                    

Change during the year -                                                    -                                                      

Clo sin g ba la n ce ( A) 2 6 8                                2 6 8                                 

( i i )  Reta i n ed ear n i ngs

Opening balance (23,606)                                         (18,734)                                          

Profit/(Loss) after tax for the year (5,898)                                            (4,870)                                              

Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year (4)                                                        (2)                                                         

Clo sin g ba la n ce ( B ) ( 2 9 ,5 0 8 )                        ( 2 3 ,6 0 6 )                         

( i i i )  Secu ri t i es pr emiu m

Opening balance 3,727                                              3,727                                                

Change during the year -                                                    -                                                      

Clo sin g ba la n ce ( C) 3 ,7 2 7                             3 ,7 2 7                              

To tal( A+ B + C) ( 2 5 ,5 1 3 )                        ( 1 9 ,6 1 1 )                         
1 Capital reserve represents reserve created for issue of share based option to employees.

No te 1 7

Oth er n o n - c u rren t f i n an ci al li abi li ti es

P arti cu lar s
As at 

March  3 1 , 2 0 2 5
As at 

Ma rch  3 1 , 2 0 2 4

Employee Accruals 48                                                      37*

To tal 4 8                                    3 7                                     

*Reclassified from 'Trade Payables'

No te 1 8

Oth er n o n - c u rren t liabi li t i es

P arti cu lar s
As at 

March  3 1 , 2 0 2 5
As at 

Ma rch  3 1 , 2 0 2 4

Deferred revenue 61                                                      112

To tal 6 1                                   1 1 2

No te 1 9

Sh o r t term bo rro win gs

P arti cu lar s
As at 

March  3 1 , 2 0 2 5
As at 

Ma rch  3 1 , 2 0 2 4

Un secu red Lo a n s

Loan from related parties (refer note 42)(1) 9,850                                              8,820                                                
To tal 9 ,8 5 0                             8 ,8 2 0                              
(1) The loan is repayable on demand with 7.0%  to 7.37% interest rate (March 31, 2024 : 7.09%  to 7.40%)
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No te 2 0
Trade P ayables ( i n c lu di n g amo u n t referred to  in  n o te 4 2 )

( A)  Th e f o llo wi n g i s a gei n g sch edule o f  tra de payables :

No t du e
Less th an  1  

y ear
1 - 2  years 2 - 3  year s

Mo r e th an  3  
y ears

To tal

 As at Ma rc h  3 1 , 2 0 2 5
Micro enterprises and small 
enterprises - Undisputed

                               18                                  191                                                51                                                7                                             18 285                                      

Others                                52                              2,066                                             478                                             50                                         115 2,761                                  
7 0                  2 ,2 57                5 2 9                          5 7                           1 3 3                        3 ,0 4 6                    

Acc ru ed expen ses 1,510                                  
Tota l 4 ,5 5 6                    
Non-current -                                        
Current 4,556                                  

 As at Ma rc h  3 1 , 2 0 2 4 *
Micro enterprises and small 
enterprises - Undisputed

                                   3                                  146                                                35                                                1                                                1 186                                      

Others                                74                              1,788                                                28                                             79                                         537 2,506                                  
7 7                  1 ,9 34                6 3                             8 0                           5 3 8                        2 ,6 9 2                    

Acc ru ed expen ses 1,059                                  
Tota l 3 ,7 5 1                    

P arti cu la rs
Ou tsta n di n g fo r  f o llo wi n g  per i o ds f ro m du e date o f  pa ymen t

*Reclassified Rs 37 Mn and Rs 225 Mn to 'Employee accruals' under Other non current financial liability (refer note 17) and Other current financial 
liability (refer note 21) respectively as the Company believes that this results in improved presentation.

P arti cu lars
As at 

Mar ch 3 1 , 2 0 2 5
As at 

March  3 1 , 2 0 24
a) (i) The principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of accounting 
year included in trade payables 197                                                 140                                        
(ii) The interest due on above 26                                                     21                                            
Th e total o f  ( i )  & ( i i ) 2 23                               1 6 1                         
b) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Act -                                                   -                                          
c) The amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during 
the accounting year 358                                                 287                                        

d) The amounts of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of financial year 88                                                     46                                            
e) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment 
(which have been paid but beyond the due date during the year) but without adding the 
interest specified under this Act. 20                                                     12                                            

( B )  In f o rmati o n  as per  the req u i remen t o f  Secti o n  2 2 o f  th e Mi cro , Small An d Medi u m En ter pri ses D ev elo pmen t 
Act, 2 0 0 6
The dues to micro and small enterprises as required under MSMED Act, 2006, based on the information available with the Company, is 
given below:
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No te 2 1

Oth er c u rren t f i n a n ci al li abi li t ies

P arti cu lar s
As at 

March  3 1 , 2 0 2 5
As at 

Ma rch  3 1 , 2 0 2 4
Employee Accruals 267                                                     225*

Payable for capital expenditure 1,296                                                1,314                                                  

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings (refer note 42) 52                                                        50                                                          

Security deposits from customers and others 1,256                                                1,512                                                  

To tal 2 ,8 7 1                              3 ,1 0 1                               

*Reclassified from 'Trade Payables'

No te 2 2
Oth er c u rren t lia bi li ti es

P arti cu lar s
As at 

March  3 1 , 2 0 2 5
As at 

Ma rch  3 1 , 2 0 2 4

Advance from customers and deferred revenue (1) 2,423                                              2,763                                                
Taxes, regulatory and statutory liabilities (includes provision with 
respect to subjudice matter related to licensing dispute) (including 
amount referred in note 47) 14,155                                           11,770                                            

To tal 1 6 ,5 7 8                          1 4 ,5 3 3                           

No te 2 3

Sh o r t term pro v i si on s

P arti cu lar s
As at 

March  3 1 , 2 0 2 5
As at 

Ma rch  3 1 , 2 0 2 4

Gratuity (refer note 38) 4                                                          -                                                      

To tal 4                                      -                                  

(1)Revenue recognised during the year from deferred revenue and advance from customers (contract liability) at the
beginning of the year  is Rs. 2,763 lakhs (March 31, 2024: Rs. 3,302 lakhs).
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No te 2 4
Oth er o per ati n g i n co me

P arti cu lar s
 F o r  th e year  en ded 

Mar ch  3 1 , 2 0 2 5  
 F o r  th e year  en ded 

March  3 1 , 2 0 2 4  

Liabilities no longer required written back 312                                                   541                                                   

Miscellaneous receipts -                                                     3                                                          
To tal 3 1 2                                 5 4 4                                 

No te 2 5
Oth er in co me

P arti cu lar s
 F o r  th e year  en ded 

Mar ch  3 1 , 2 0 2 5  
 F o r  th e year  en ded 

March  3 1 , 2 0 2 4  

Interest income 30                                                       40                                                       

To tal 3 0                                   4 0                                   

No te 2 6
Emplo yee ben ef i t expen ses

P arti cu lar s
 F o r  th e year  en ded 

Mar ch  3 1 , 2 0 2 5  
 F o r  th e year  en ded 

March  3 1 , 2 0 2 4  

Salaries, wages and bonus 1,611                                               1,427                                               
Contribution to provident, gratuity and other funds (refer note 38) 80                                                       86                                                       
Staff welfare 102                                                   102                                                   
Recruitment and training 4                                                          3                                                          
To tal 1 ,7 9 7                             1 ,6 1 8                             

No te 2 7
Netwo rk expen ses an d IT o u tso u rci n g co st

P arti cu lar s
 F o r  th e year  en ded 

Mar ch  3 1 , 2 0 2 5  
 F o r  th e year  en ded 

March  3 1 , 2 0 2 4  

Security service charges                                                  2,058                                                  1,996 

Power and fuel                                                      271                                                      258 

Repairs and maintenance - plant and machinery                                                      455                                                      614 

Lease line and connectivity charges (including amount 
referred in note 42)

                                                 2,149                                                  2,767 

                                                         38                                                          50 

Other network operating expenses*                                                          (1)                                                   (118)
To tal 4 ,9 7 0                             5 ,5 6 7                             

*Negative on account of reversal of excess provision created in earlier years

Network insurance (including amount referred in note 42)
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No te 2 8
Su bscr i ber  a cq u i si ti o n  an d serv i c i n g expen di tu re

P arti cu lar s
 F o r  th e year  en ded 

Mar ch  3 1 , 2 0 2 5  
 F o r  th e year  en ded 

March  3 1 , 2 0 2 4  

Collection, telecalling and servicing expenses 132                                                   158                                                   
Sales support cost, commission and others 956                                                   1,190                                               
Customer retention and customer loyalty expenses 281                                                   323                                                   
To tal 1 ,3 6 9                             1 ,6 7 1                             

No te 2 9
Adv erti semen t, bu si n ess pro mo tio n  expen di tu re an d co n ten t co st

P arti cu lar s
 F o r  th e year  en ded 

Mar ch  3 1 , 2 0 2 5  
 F o r  th e year  en ded 

March  3 1 , 2 0 2 4  

Content cost 64                                                       -                                                     
Advertisement and business promotion expenditure 38                                                       38                                                       
To tal 1 0 2                                 3 8                                   

No te 3 0
Oth er expenses

P arti cu lar s
 F o r  th e year  en ded 

Mar ch  3 1 , 2 0 2 5  
 F o r  th e year  en ded 

March  3 1 , 2 0 2 4  

Repairs and maintenance

- Building 9                                                          8                                                          

- Others 49                                                       53                                                       

Infra sharing support charges  (refer note 42) -                                                     2                                                          

Rates and taxes 23                                                       18                                                       

Electricity 46                                                       66                                                       

Printing and stationery 5                                                          7                                                          

Communication expenses 14                                                       12                                                       

Travelling and conveyance 70                                                       70                                                       

Allowances for doubtful debts and advances (refer note 36) (3)                                                        10                                                       

Bad debts / advances written off 12                                                       71                                                       

Loss/(Gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment (net) 21                                                       11                                                       

Directors sitting fees (refer note 42) 1                                                          1                                                          

Legal and professional charges (including amount referred in note 42) 67                                                       60                                                       

Audit fees (refer note 39) 13                                                       13                                                       

Business support expense 120                                                   123                                                   

Support service charges (refer note 42) 130                                                   159                                                   

Miscellaneous expenses 97                                                       88                                                       

To tal 6 7 4                                 7 7 2                                 
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Note 32 
Capital and other Commitments 
 

Estimated amount of commitments are as follows: 
Contracts remaining to be executed for capital expenditure (net of advances) and not provided for are Rs.147 lakhs  
(March 31, 2024: Rs.179 lakhs). 
 

  
 
Goods and Services Tax 
During the prior years, the Company has received demand order of Rs.1 lakh in Telangana state and Rs.7 lakhs in Gujarat state, for 
interest payment on account of delayed filing of GST returns for FY 2017-18. Also Demand order of Rs. 0.4 lakh for FY 2019-20 and 
Rs. 0.2 Lakh for FY 2020-21 received during current year in Tamil Nadu state. 
 
Future cash outflows in respect of the above matters are determinable only on receipt of judgments/ decisions from such forums/ 
authorities. Further, based on the Company’s evaluation, it believes that it is not probable that the claim will materialise and 
therefore, no provision has been recognized for the above. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

No te 3 1
F in a n ce co sts

P arti cu lar s
 F o r  th e year  en ded 

Mar ch  3 1 , 2 0 2 5  
 F o r  th e year  en ded 

March  3 1 , 2 0 2 4  

Interest expense on borrowings (refer note 42) 654                                                   650                                                   

Interest expense on lease liabilities (refer note 34) 131                                                   157                                                   

Interest on AGR liability (refer note 47) 1,653                                               1,363                                               

Interest on others (including amount referred in note 20) 44                                                       30                                                       

Other finance charges 6                                                          4                                                          

To tal i n terest expen se 2 ,4 8 8                             2 ,2 0 4                             

Exchange difference (net) 10                                                       6                                                          

To tal 2 ,4 9 8                             2 ,2 1 0                             

No te 3 3

P arti cu lars
As a t 

March  3 1 , 2 0 2 5
As at 

Ma rch  3 1 , 2 0 2 4
 Goods and Services Tax (GST) 9 8

Co n ti n gen t Li abi li ti es
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Note 34 
Leases 
 
Company as a lessee 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P arti cu lars
As at 

Mar ch  3 1 , 2 0 2 5
As a t 

Mar ch  3 1 , 2 0 2 4
Open i n g balan ce 1 ,6 5 8                           1 ,6 5 1                           
Additions 346                                                 555                                                 
Accretion of interest 131                                                 157                                                 
Payments (810)                                               (655)                                               
Disposals (152)                                               (50)                                                  
Clo si n g balan ce 1 ,1 7 3                           1 ,6 5 8                           
Current 622 1,255                                            
Non-current 551 403                                                 

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities are disclosed in note 44

Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities (included under lease liabilities) and the movements during the 
year:

No te 3 5

D etai ls o f  f o rei gn  cu r ren cy expo su res

No t h edged by a deri v ati v e i n stru men t o r  o th erwi se

P arti cu lar s
As at 

Ma rch  3 1 , 2 0 2 5
As at 

Ma rch  3 1 , 2 0 2 4

Tra de payables an d Oth er f i n a n ci al li abi li ty

In USD 4                                                                           4                                           

In GBP -* -*
Equivalent Rs. of Trade payables and Other current financial liability 

in foreign currency1

335                                                                    366                                    

1Amount in Rs. represents conversion at closing rate

*Numbers are below one lakh under the rounding off convention adopted by the Company and accordingly not reported.

No te 3 6

Mo v emen t o f  Allo wan ces f o r  D o u btf u l debts/adv a n ces

P arti cu lar s
As at 

Ma rch  3 1 , 2 0 2 5
As at 

Ma rch  3 1 , 2 0 2 4

Opening Balance 169                                                  159                                    
Charged to Statement of Profit and Loss (net) (refer note 30) (3)                                                       10                                        

Clo si n g B alan c e 1 6 6                                1 6 9                       
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Note 37 
Segment Information 
As the Company operates in only one business segment, hence there is no separate reportable segment as per Ind AS – 108 on 
“Operating segment”.  

 
 

Note 38 
Employee benefits 
 

A. Defined Benefit Plan (Gratuity) 
 

General description and benefits of the plan 
The Company operate a defined benefit final salary gratuity plan through a trust. The gratuity benefits payable to the employees 
are based on the employee’s service and last drawn salary at the time of leaving. The benefit is payable on termination of service 
or retirement, whichever is earlier. The employees do not contribute towards this plan and the full cost of providing these benefits 
are borne by the Company. 

 
Regulatory framework, funding arrangement and governance of the Plan 
The gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 (Gratuity Act). The trustees of the gratuity fund have a fiduciary 
responsibility to act according to the provisions of the trust deed and rules. Since the fund is income tax approved, the Company 
and the trustees have to ensure that they are at all times fully compliant with the relevant provisions of the income tax act and 
rules. The Company is bound to pay the statutory minimum gratuity as prescribed under Gratuity Act. There are no minimum 
funding requirements for a gratuity plan in India. The Company’s philosophy is to fund the benefits based on its own liquidity and 
tax position as well as level of underfunding of the plan vis-a-vis settlements. The trustees of the trust are responsible for the 
overall governance of the plan. The trustees of the plan have outsourced the investment management of the fund to insurance 
Companies which in turn manage these funds as per the mandate provided to them by the trustees and applicable insurance and 
other regulations. 
 
Inherent risks 
The plan is of a final salary defined benefit in nature which is sponsored by the Company and hence it underwrites all the risks 
pertaining to the plan. In particular, there is a risk for the Company that any significant change in salary growth or demographic 
experience or inadequate returns on underlying plan assets can result in an increase in cost of providing these benefits to 
employees in future. 
 
The following tables summarizes the components of net benefit expense recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss and the 
funded status and amounts recognized in the Balance Sheet for gratuity: 
 

 
 
 

P arti cu la rs
As at 

Mar ch  3 1 , 2 0 2 5
As at 

March  3 1 , 2 0 2 4
Amo u n t  reco gn i sed in  B alan c e Sh eet
Present value of obligations as at the end of the year                           200                           202 
Fair value of plan assets as at the end of the year                           196                           207 
Net funded obligation                                  4                               (5)
Net (Liability)/Asset recognised in Balance Sheet                               (4)                                  5 

Net Asset/(Liability) recognised in Balance Sheet is bifurcated as

- Other current assets                                  -                                    5 
- Short term provision                                     (4)                                        -   
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Sr . No P a rti cu lars
F or  th e year  en ded 

Ma rch  3 1 , 2 0 2 5
Fo r th e year  en ded 

Mar ch  3 1 , 2 0 2 4
1 Reco n ci li a ti o n  o f  n et def i n ed benef i t  o bligati o n  ( D B O)

Opening net defined benefit liability/(asset) (Net) (5)                       (21)                    
Expense charged to statement of profit & loss                         16                         15 
Expense / (Income) charged to OCI                            4                            2 
Employer contributions                      (11)                         (1)
Closing net defined benefit liability/(asset) (Net)                                          4                                         ( 5 )

2 Reco n ci li a ti o n  o f  def i n ed ben ef i t  o Obli gati o n
Opening defined benefit obligation 202                                                      204                                                      
Current service cost                         16 17                                                          
Interest on defined benefit obligation                         15 14                                                          
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss arising from change in financial assumptions                            8 3                                                             
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss arising on account of experience changes                         (4) (2)                                                           
Benefits paid                      (37) (34)                                                        
Closing defined benefit obligation 2 0 0                                   2 0 2                                   

3 Reco n ci li a ti o n  o f  plan  assets
Opening fair value of plan assets                     207 225                                                      
Employer contributions                         11 1                                                             
Interest on plan assets                         15 16                                                          
Re measurements due to
- Actual return on plan assets less expected interest on plan assets -* (1)                                                           
Benefits paid                      (37) (34)                                                        
Closing fair value of plan assets 1 9 6                                   2 0 7                                   

Sr . No P a rti cu lars
F or  th e year  en ded 

Ma rch  3 1 , 2 0 2 5
Fo r th e year  en ded 

Mar ch  3 1 , 2 0 2 4

1 Expen ses rec o gn i sed i n  th e Statemen t o f  P r o f i t & Lo ss
Current service cost 16                                                          17                                                          
Interest on net defined benefit liability/(asset) -* (2)                                                           
Expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss 1 6                                     1 5                                     

2 Amou n t  reco rded a s Oth er Co mpreh en si v e In co me ( OCI)
Re measurement  during the period due to
-   Changes in financial assumptions 8                                                             3                                                             
-   Experience adjustments (4)                                                           (2)                                                           
-   Return  on plan  assets (excluding amounts included in net 
interest expense) -* 1                                                             
Amount recognised in OCI (gains) / loss 4                                        2                                        

*Numbers are below one lakh under the rounding off convention adopted by the Company and accordingly not reported.

Amou n ts rec o gn i sed i n  th e statemen ts o f  pro f i t  an d lo ss i n  respect o f  th i s def i n ed ben ef i t plan  are as fo llo ws:
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Th e pr i n ci pal assu mpti o n s u sed i n  determi n i n g gr atu i ty  o bli gat i o n s are sh o wn  belo w:
P arti cu lar s F o r  th e y ear  en ded 

Mar ch  3 1 , 2 0 2 5
F o r th e y ear  en ded 

March  3 1 , 2 0 2 4
Discount rate 6.65% 7.20%

Future salary increases1 5.00% 5.00%

Attrition rate 25 years & below - 4%
26 - 35 years - 21% 
36 - 45 years - 17% 

46 - 55 years - 9% 
56 years & above - 0% 

25 years & below - 4%
26 - 35 years - 21% 
36 - 45 years - 17% 

46 - 55 years - 9% 
56 years & above - 0% 

Mortality rate during employment

Disability

 As per Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2012-14) Table 

1The estimates of future salary increase considered takes into account inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant 
factors.

 Leaving service due to disability is included in the 
provision made for all causes of leaving service. 

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions on the defined benefit obligation is as below:

D isco u n t Rate Salary esca lati o n Rate D isco u n t Ra te Sa lar y  esc ala tio n  Ra te
Impact of increase in 50 bps on DBO -3.55% 3.26% -3.12% 2.70%
Impact of decrease in 50 bps on DBO 3.81% -3.07% 3.34% -2.61%

Fo r  th e yea r  en ded Ma rch  3 1 , 2 0 24

The sensitivity analysis above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit obligation as a result of reasonable changes in key 
assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period.

P artic u lars
Fo r  th e year  en ded March  3 1 , 2 0 2 5

The following payments are expected contributions to the defined benefit plan in future years:

P arti cu lar s
F o r  th e y ear  en ded 

Mar ch  3 1 , 2 0 2 5
F o r th e y ear  en ded 

March  3 1 , 2 0 2 4
Within the next 12 months 19                                                          16                                                          

Disaggregation details of plan assets (% allocation):

P arti cu lar s
F o r  th e y ear  en ded 

Mar ch  3 1 , 2 0 2 5
F o r th e y ear  en ded 

March  3 1 , 2 0 2 4

Insurer Managed Funds1 100% 100%
1The funds are managed by insurers and they do not provide breakup of plan assets by investment type.

P ro j ected plan  cash  f lo w:

P arti cu lar s
F o r  th e y ear  en ded 

Mar ch  3 1 , 2 0 2 5
F o r th e y ear  en ded 

March  3 1 , 2 0 2 4
Expected benefits for year 1                                                             27                                                             32 
Expected benefits for year 2                                                             23                                                             24 
Expected benefits for year 3                                                             21                                                             39 
Expected benefits for year 4                                                             18                                                             19 
Expected benefits for year 5 and above                                                         275                                                         254 

The table below shows the expected cash flow profile of the benefits to be paid to the current membership of the plan based 
on past service of the employees as at the valuation date.

The average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting period is 8.98 years (March 31, 2024:
8.31 years).
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B . D ef i n ed co n tr i bu ti o n  plan s:
During the year, the Company has recognised the following amounts in the Statement of Profit and Loss:

P arti cu lar s
F o r  th e y ear  en ded 

Mar ch  3 1 , 2 0 2 5
F o r th e y ear  en ded 

March  3 1 , 2 0 2 4
Employers' contribution to provident and other fund                                                             64                                                             71 

No te 3 9
Au di to r 's remu n erati o n

P arti cu lar s
F o r  th e year  en ded 

Ma rch  3 1 , 2 0 2 5
F o r th e y ear  en ded 

Ma rch  3 1 , 2 0 2 4
Statutory audit fees 13                                                      13                                                             
Certification and Other services (included in Legal and Professional 
charges) (Refer note 30) 1                                                         1                                                                
Out of pocket expenses (included in miscellaneous expenses) 1                                                         -*
To tal Remu n erati o n 1 5                                   1 4                                       

*Numbers are below one lakh under the rounding off convention adopted by the Company and accordingly not reported.

No te 40
In co me tax  expen ses
Reco n ci li atio n  o f  av erage ef f ecti v e tax ra te an d appli cable ta x rate
P arti cu lars F o r  th e year  en ded 

March  3 1 , 2 0 2 5
F o r th e year  en ded 

March  3 1 , 2 0 2 4
Loss before income tax expense (5,898)                                              (4,870)                                            
Appli cable tax rate 25.17% 25.17%
Increase / reduction in taxes on account of:
Effect of items for which no deferred tax is recognised (24.91)% (24.98)%
Effects of expenses / income that are not deductible / 
considered in determining the taxable profits (0.26)% (0.19)%
Ef f ectiv e tax ra te 0.00% 0.00%

P arti cu lars
As at 

March  3 1 , 2 0 2 5
As at 

March  3 1 , 2 0 2 4
Above 5 years 3,006                                                636                                                  
Unlimited 45,166                                             41,541                                          
To tal 4 8 ,1 7 1                           42 ,1 7 7                          

The Company has not recognized deferred tax assets in respect of carried forward losses and unabsorbed depreciation
amounting to Rs. 48,171 lakhs as of March 31, 2025 (March 31, 2024: Rs. 42,177 lakhs). The aforesaid carried forward
losses and unabsorbed depreciation will lapse in the subsequent years as follows:

No te 4 1

B asi c  &  D i lu ted Earn i n gs/( Lo ss)  per  Sh are

P arti cu lar s
F o r  th e y ear  en ded 

Mar ch  3 1 , 2 0 2 5
Fo r  th e y ea r  en ded 

Ma rch  3 1 , 2 0 2 4

Nominal value of equity shares  (Rs.) 10/- 10/-

Profit/(Loss) after Tax                                            (5,898)                                           (4,870)

Profit/(Loss) attributable to equity shareholders                                            (5,898)                                           (4,870)
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during 
the year

75,004,960 75,004,960

Basic and Diluted Earnings/(Loss) Per Share (Rs.)                                                (7.86)                                               (6.49)
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No te 4 2
Related P a rty Tran sacti o n s

The Company has transaction with below related parties:
Relati o n sh ip Rela ted P arty

Holding  Company Vodafone Idea Limited 
Vodafone Idea Shared Services Limited
Vodafone Idea Communication Systems Limited
Mr. EVS Chakravarthy (Resigned as Managing Director & CEO on October 31, 2024)
Mr. Tridib Ghosh Dastider (Resigned as CFO on October 31, 2024)*
Mr. Sameer Mahapatra (Appointed as CEO on December 5, 2024)

Mr. Bharat Kumar Jain (Appointed As CFO on November 6, 2024)*

Mr. Krishnan Ramachandran (Non-Executive Director) 

Mr. Abhijit Kishore (Appointed as Non-Executive Director on October 25, 2024)*
Mr. Jagbir Singh  (Non-Executive Director)*

* No transactions during current year and no outstanding balances as on March 31, 2025.

Fellow Subsidiaries

Key Management Personnel (KMP)

A. Tra n sac ti o n s wi th  related parties f o r  th e year  en ded Marc h  3 1 , 2 0 2 5  a n d March  3 1 , 2 0 2 4
 P a rti cu lars  Ho ldi n g Co mpa n y  Fello w Su bsi di ar y  KMP  

                                                    381                                                                -                                                               -   

                                                 (359)                                                                -                                                               -   

                                               1,430                                                         130                                                             -   

                                            (1,737)                                                      (159)                                                             -   
                                                          -                                                           654                                                             -   

                                                          -                                                        (650)                                                             -   

                                                       31                                                                8                                                             -   

                                                    (37)                                                             (7)                                                             -   

                                                          -                                                       1,050                                                             -   

                                                          -                                                    (8,820)                                                             -   

                                                          -                                                               20                                                             -   

                                                          -                                                    (8,901)                                                             -   

                                                          -                                                                  -                                                               1 

                                                          -                                                                  -                                                            (1)

                                                           1                                                                -                                                               -   

                                                          -                                                                  -                                                               -   

                                                          -                                                                  -                                                        333 

                                                          -                                                                  -                                                     (228)
(Figures in bracket are for the year ended March 31, 2024)

Loan taken

Loan repaid

Director’s sitting fees paid

Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment

Sale of Services

Interest expense on borrowings

Purchase of services

Expense incurred on company's behalf by

Remuneration



You Broadband India Limited            
Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 
(All amounts are in Rs. lakhs, except per share data and unless stated otherwise) 

Notes to Financial Statements 
       

 

 
 

 
 

B . B alan ces wi th  Related P arties as at March  3 1 , 2 0 2 5  a n d March  3 1 , 2 0 2 4

 P a rti cu lars  Ho ldi n g Co mpa n y  Fello w Su bsi di ar y  KMP  

                                               1,876                                                             73                                                             -   

                                                 (913)                                                          (54)                                                             -   

                                                          -                                                               52                                                             -   

                                                          -                                                            (50)                                                             -   

                                                       10                                                                -                                                               -   

                                                 (138)                                                                -                                                               -   

                                                          -                                                       9,850                                                             -   

                                                          -                                                    (8,820)                                                             -   

                                                          -                                                                  -                                                            30 

                                                          -                                                                  -                                                         (24)
(Figures in bracket are for the year ended March 31, 2024)

C. Co mpen sati o n  o f  Key Ma n agemen t P erso n n el o f  th e Co mpan y

P a rti c u lars
 Fo r  th e yea r  en ded 

Mar ch  3 1 , 2 0 2 5  
 F o r  th e y ear  en ded 

March  3 1 , 2 0 2 4  

Short-term employee benefits                                                         325                                                      222 

Post-employment benefits1                                                                8                                                             6 

D . Th e si gn i f i c an t related party  tran sactio n s are su mma ri sed belo w :

P a rti c u lars
 Fo r  th e yea r  en ded 

Mar ch  3 1 , 2 0 2 5  
 F o r  th e y ear  en ded 

March  3 1 , 2 0 2 4  

In terest expen se o n  bo rro win gs

Vodafone Idea Communication Systems Limited                                                         654                                                      650 
Expen se i n cu rred o n  co mpan y's beh alf  by

Vodafone Idea Shared Services Limited                                                                8                                                             7 
Lo an  taken

Vodafone Idea Communication Systems Limited                                                     1,050                                                  8,820 
Lo an  repa id

Vodafone Idea Communication Systems Limited                                                             20                                                  8,901 
Remu n era ti o n

Mr. Sameer Mahapatra                                                             51                                                             -   
Mr. EVS Chakravarthy                                                         282                                                      228 

 Trade and Other payables 

 Outstanding loan payable 

1Represents contribution to provident funds. As Gratuity expense is based on actuarial valuations, the same cannot be computed
for individual employees and hence not included.

Remuneration payable

 Interest payable 

 Prepaid expenses 
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(b) Fair value hierarchy 
 

The carrying amounts of the above financial assets and financial liabilities are a reasonable approximation of their fair values. 
Accordingly, the fair values of such financial assets and financial liabilities have not been disclosed separately. 

 
 

Note 44 
Financial risk management objectives and policies 
 

The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise borrowings, lease liabilities, trade and other payables. The Company’s 
principal financial assets comprise cash and bank balance, trade and other receivables. 

 
The Company is exposed to various financial risks such as market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Directors of the Company 
oversees management of these risks and assure that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the 
Company’s policies and risk objectives. 
 

Market risk 
 
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market 
prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk. 
Financial instruments affected by market risk include borrowings. 
 
 
 
 

No te 4 3
F in a n ci al In stru men ts

 As at March  3 1 , 2 0 2 5  As at March  3 1 , 2 0 2 4

F in a n ci al assets
Trade receivables 130                                                                89                                                                    
Cash and cash equivalents 289                                                                310                                                                 

Margin money deposits (1) 247                                                                278                                                                 
Bank deposits with original maturity from 3-12 months 22                                                                   20                                                                    
Deposit with Body corporates, Government authorities 

and others(1) 155                                                                170                                                                 

Interest receivable(1) 2                                                                       3                                                                        
To tal F i n an ci al assets 8 4 5                                         8 7 0                                          

 As at March  3 1 , 2 0 2 5  As at March  3 1 , 2 0 2 4

F in a n ci al li abi li ties
Borrowings including Interest accrued but not due 9,902                                                           8,870                                                            
Trade payables 4,556                                                           3,751                                                            

Payables for capital expenditure(2) 1,296                                                           1,314                                                            

Security deposits from customers and others(2) 1,256                                                           1,512                                                            
Lease liabilities 1,173                                                           1,658                                                            

Others(2) 315                                                                262                                                                 
To tal F i n an ci al li abi li ti es 1 8 ,4 9 8                                   1 7 ,3 6 7                                   
(1) included in other current / non-current financial assets
(2) included in other current / non-current financial liabilities

a) F i n an ci al In stru men ts by Catego ry: The following table provides categorisation of all financial instruments at
carrying value

P arti cu lar s

P arti cu lar s

Amo rti sed Co st

 Amo rti sed Co st 
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a) Interest rate risk          
 
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that portion of loans and 
borrowings affected. With all other variables held constant, the Company’s profit/(loss) before tax is affected through the impact 
on floating rate borrowings, as follows: 
 

 
 
The assumed movement in basis points for the interest rate sensitivity analysis is based on the currently observable market 
environment. 
 
b) Foreign currency risk 
 
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign 
exchange rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Company’s 
operating activities (when revenue or expense is denominated in a foreign currency). 
 

The Company’s foreign currency risks are identified, measured and managed at periodic intervals in accordance with the 
Company’s policies. 
 

Foreign currency sensitivity 
 
The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in foreign currency rates, with all other variables 
held constant. The impact on the Company’s profit / (loss) before tax is due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and 
liabilities including non-designated foreign currency derivatives. 
 

 
 
c)  Credit risk 
Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument, leading to a financial loss. The 
Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its financing activities, and 
other financial instrument 

 
- Trade receivable 
Customer credit risk is managed in accordance with the Company’s established policy, procedures and controls relating to 
customer credit risk management. Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on 0 to 30 days’ credit terms. 
Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored. 
 
 
 

In terest rate sen si ti v i ty

P arti cu lar s
In c rease/decrease 
i n  basis po i n ts

Ef f ect o n  pro f i t 
bef o re tax

Ma rch  3 1 , 2 0 2 5
+100                                                     (99)
-100                                                        99 

Ma rch  3 1 , 2 0 2 4
+100                                                     (88)
-100                                                        88 

INR - Borrowings

INR - Borrowings

F o rei gn  cu rren cy r i sk

Cu rren cy expo su r e
Ch an ge i n  cu rren cy 
exch a n ge rate

Ef f ect o n  pro f i t 
bef o re tax

Ma rch  3 1 , 2 0 2 5
5%                                                     (18)

-5%                                                        18 
Ma rch  3 1 , 2 0 2 4

5%                                                     (18)
-5%                                                        18 

USD

USD



You Broadband India Limited            
Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 
(All amounts are in Rs. lakhs, except per share data and unless stated otherwise) 
Notes to Financial Statements 

       

 

- Other financial assets and cash deposits 
The Company maintains its Cash and cash equivalents with banks and financial institutions having good reputation, good past 
record and high quality credit rating and reviews their credit worthiness on an on-going basis in close co-ordination with its holding 
Company’s Treasury team. 
 
The Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025 and  
March 31, 2024 on its carrying amounts as disclosed in notes 8, 10, 11, 12 and 13. 
 
d) Liquidity risk 
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may not be able to meet its present and future cash and collateral obligations without 
incurring unacceptable losses.  
 
The Company maintains adequate liquidity through effective fund/working capital management for settling its liabilities as and 
when they arise. However, the Company may need financial support from the holding company, to settle some of its existing 
liabilities and fund the operations of the Company (refer note 46). 
 
The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted 
payments: 
 

 
 
Note 45 
Capital risk management 
 
For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity share capital and all other equity reserves 
attributable to the equity holders. The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to maximise the shareholder 
value. 
 
Note 46 

The Company has accumulated losses of Rs. 25,513 lakhs as at March 31, 2025 and the Company’s current liabilities exceeded 
its current assets by Rs. 32,832 lakhs. The Company has assessed its liquidity position and possible sources of funds. 
 
Basis the assessment, the Company may need financial support from the holding Company to settle some of its existing liabilities. 
Hence, its ability to continue as a going concern is dependent on the holding Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. 
The holding Company’s ability to continue as going concern is dependent on its ability to raise additional funds, as required. 

 
 

Li q u i di ty  r i sk
P articu lars Car ryi n g Valu e Less th an  1  year 1  to  5  years >  5  yea rs To tal pa ymen ts

 As at March  3 1 , 2 0 2 5

Borrowings and Interest thereon (1)                            9,902                            9,902                     -               -                         9,902 

Trade and other payables (2)                            5,852                            5,852                     -               -                         5,852 

Other financial liabilities (1) & (2)                            1,571                            1,523                  48             -                         1,571 
Lease liabilities                            1,173                                714              546       146                             1,406 
To tal              1 8 ,4 9 8               1 7 ,9 9 1         5 9 4    1 4 6            1 8 ,7 3 1  

 As at March  3 1 , 2 0 2 4

Borrowings and Interest thereon (1)                            8,870                            8,870                           -                     -                               8,870 

Trade and other payables (2)                            5,065                            5,065                           -                     -                               5,065 

Other financial liabilities (1) & (2)                            1,774                            1,737                        37                   -                               1,774 
Lease liabilities                            1,658                            1,095                    659                32                             1,786 
To tal              1 7 ,3 6 7               1 6 ,7 6 7         6 9 6       3 2            1 7 ,4 9 5  

1Interest accrued but not due of Rs. 52 lakhs (March 31, 2024: Rs. 50 lakhs) has been excluded from other financial liabilities and included in
borrowings and interest thereon.
2Payable for capex expenditure of Rs. 1,296 lakhs (March 31, 2024: Rs. 1,314 lakhs) has been excluded from other financial liabilities and
included in trade and other payables.
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Note 47 
 
The Hon’ble Supreme Court on October 24, 2019 passed its judgement against the telecom operators on cross appeals against 
the Hon’ble TDSAT judgement dated April 23, 2015 relating to the definition of Adjusted Gross Revenue (‘SC AGR Judgement’). 
The order upheld the levy of interest, penalty and interest on penalty along with a supplementary order directing payment of 
dues to be made within 3 months from the date of the order.  
 
Further to the above judgement, there has been separate orders, relating to ISP’s as petitioners holding Unified License (UL), by 
the Hon’ble TDSAT on October 18, 2019 where Internet Service Providers Association of India (ISPAI) was a party to the order and 
further re-confirmed on June 12, 2020, that revenue earned from Pure Internet Service should be excluded from the calculation 
of AGR for the purpose of calculating license fees. Further to this, as stated in the TDSAT order dated June 12, 2020, the learned 
counsel of Department of Telecom (DoT) agreed of having no objection to disposing off the issue of AGR raised in the relevant 
petitions on the basis of judgment dated October 18, 2019 in view of parity claimed by the petitioners holding UL and others 
holding ISP License. The DoT has since appealed against the TDSAT order to the Hon’ble Supreme Court which is under review. 
 
On March 31, 2021, DoT issued amendment to the ISP license and included “Revenue from pure Revenue Services” with 
immediate effect. This amendment has been challenged by one of the ISP licensees before TDSAT vide order dated June 3, 2021. 
TDSAT allowed interim prayer till further orders. Further this amendment was also challenged by other ISP license holders 
subsequently and vide order dated June 10, 2021, TDSAT allowed interim protection to all ISPs. TDSAT also directed DoT to extend 
similar protection to the similarly placed licensee till next date of hearing. The matter continues to remain sub judice. However, 
the Company on prudent basis has made provision of Rs. 752 lakhs (March 31, 2024: Rs.  897 lakhs) towards license fees on 
revenue from Pure Internet Services and interest of Rs. 388 lakhs for FY  24-25 (March 31, 2024: 272 lakhs) for this matter.  
 
Further, the Company has also recognised interest cost of Rs. 1,265 lakhs (March 31, 2024: Rs. 1091 lakhs) towards license fees 
demands, prior to March 31, 2021, raised by DoT and for the years demands not received till date, as per the license agreement 
terms.  
 
The above matters are resulting in a cumulative license fees provision of Rs.  14,081 lakhs as on March 31, 2025 (March 31, 2024: 
Rs.  11,676 lakhs). While the provision in the books has been made out of abundant caution, the Company shall continue with the 
required legal steps in this regard on these demands. 
 
During the year, DoT issued letter to the Company invoking bank guarantees towards AGR dues for past period. The Company 
filed petition in TDSAT seeking no coercive action against impugned invocation letters. TDSAT issued favorable order to the 
Company, seeking no coercive action against the order. The matter is under adjudication. 
 

 

No te 48
Addi tio n al di sclo sure as per  req u i remen t o f  Sch edu le I II
A)  Rati o s f o r  th e year  en ded March  3 1 , 2 0 25  an d March 3 1 , 2 0 2 4

P arti cu lars As at 
March  3 1 , 2 0 25

As at 
Mar ch 3 1 , 2 0 2 4

% Var i an ce Reaso n  f o r  v ar i an ce

Current Ratio(1) 0.07                                                  0.07                                             (11)%

Debt Equity Ratio(2) (0.55)                                                (0.73)                                           (25)%

Mainly due to decrease in net 
worth of the company

Debt Service Coverage Ratio ('DSCR') (3) (0.21)                                                0.04                                             (573)% Mainly due to higher losses during 

Return on Equity Ratio (4) NA* NA* NA*

Trade Receivables turnover ratio (number of days) (5) 4                                                          3                                                     52% Mainly due to lower revenue

Trade Payables turnover ratio (6) 2.15                                                  2.63                                             (18)%

Net capital turnover ratio (7) (0.43)                                                (0.57)                                           (24)%

Net Profit ratio (%) (8) (60)% (41)% (60)% Mainly due to higher losses during 

Return on Capital employed (9) NA# NA# NA#

* This ratio is not applicable as the Net-worth is negative
# As the capital employed is negative as on March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024.

(9) Return on Capital employed = [(Profit/(loss) before tax + Finance costs) / (Equity share capital + Other equity + Debt (excluding interest accrued but not 

(1) Current Ratio = [Current assets/Current liabilities (excluding short term borrowings)]
(2) Debt-Equity Ratio = [Debt (excluding interest accrued but not due)/ Equity]
(3) DSCR = [Profit/(loss) before tax + Depreciation & Amortisation expenses (excluding depreciation on ROU assets) + Finance costs (excluding fair value
gains/losses on derivatives and interest on lease liabilities)] / [Finance costs (excluding interest  on lease liabilities)]
(4) Return on Equity Ratio = [Net Profit/(loss) after tax/ Average Equity]
(5) Trade Receivables turnover ratio = [(Average trade receivables/(Revenue from operations)*Number of days during the year]
(6) Trade Payables turnover ratio = [Total purchases/Average Trade Payables]
(7) Net capital turnover ratio = [Revenue from operations / (Current asset - Current liability (excluding Short term borrowings))
(8) Net profit ratio = [Profit after tax/Revenue from operations]
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Note 49 
 
The Company uses accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit 
log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, there 
are no instances of audit trail feature being tampered with. Additionally, the audit trail has been preserved as per the statutory 
requirements for record retention. 
 
The Company uses software applications which are operated by third-party service providers, for payroll processing and has 
obtained the Service Organisation Controls (SOC) report from the service provider for the same. The report includes coverage of 
controls related to the enablement of audit trail functionalities at both the application and database levels. 
 
 
 

 
 

 

B )  Relati o n sh ip wi th  stru ck o f f  co mpan ies

Natu re o f  tran sacti o n  with  Stru ck 
Off  Co mpan y

Name o f  th e Stru ck Of f  Co mpan y Trasactio n  du r in g 
peri o d en ded March  

3 1 , 2 0 2 5

Trasactio n  du r in g 
peri o d en ded March  

3 1 , 2 0 2 4

B alan ce o u tstan din g 
as o n  March  3 1 , 

2 0 2 5

B alan ce o u tstan din g 
as o n  March  3 1 , 

2 0 2 4
Co mpan i es with  Ou tstan di n g B alan ce o f  Mo re th an  Rs 1  Lakh

Payable West Coast Optilinks -                                                    -                                                    -                                                    6                                                         

*Numbers are below one lakh under the rounding off convention adopted by the Company and accordingly not reported.

As per our report of even date
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Chartered Accountants
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Ami t P o ddar J agbi r  Si n gh Abh i j i t Ki sh o re
Partner Director Director
Membership No.: 509192 (DIN:03258009) (DIN: 09042186) 

Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai Place : Delhi
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Sameer  Mah apa tra B h arat Ku mar  J ain Vin eet Ch o rar ia
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
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